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          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Welcome to the

          3  meeting on Housing and Buildings. My name is Archie

          4  Spigner and I am the Chair of this Committee. Today

          5  we are conducting the first hearing on Intro. No.

          6  677, a bill that would amend the Administrative Code

          7  in relation to the abatement of rats as a

          8  requirement for foundation or earthwork permits.

          9  Intro. No. 677 is an attempt to eliminate the

         10  proliferation of rats whose presence is often

         11  undetected until construction is commenced.

         12                 With the advent of a booming economy,

         13  new construction and renovation occurring in many

         14  areas throughout the City, this legislation will

         15  require builders to conduct appropriate rat

         16  abatement measures at construction sites.

         17                 Under this proposal, an applicant,

         18  when submitting a request for a foundation permit or

         19  an earthwork permit, would be required to submit

         20  appropriate certification that rat trapping or rat

         21  baiting has been conducted at the site for which the

         22  permit is sought in accordance with the rules of the

         23  Department of Buildings.

         24                 This legislation would take effect 30

         25  days after it has been enacted into law. The
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          2  Council's concern with rat infestation has been

          3  evidenced by the creation of the Select Committee on

          4  Pest Control, which is affiliated with the Health

          5  Committee.

          6                 The Select Committee has thus far

          7  held three separate hearings this year on May 25th,

          8  June 16th and July 24th regarding rat infestations.

          9                 Today, the Committee on Housing and

         10  Buildings is joined by the Chair of the Select

         11  Committee on Pest Control, Council Member Perkins,

         12  Bill Perkins, William Perkins, and Council Member

         13  Stephen Fiala, the sponsor of this bill.

         14                 Anyone wishing to testify today will

         15  please sign in with the Sergeant-At-Arms.

         16                 The Committee is expecting to hear

         17  from James Gibson, the Assistant Commissioner for

         18  Veterinary and Pest Control Services, as well as

         19  representatives of the Building Industry, and I see

         20  from the Department of Buildings as well.

         21                 Council Member Perkins, do you care

         22  to make a statement?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you

         24  very much, Mr. Chairman.

         25                 Let me briefly first say on behalf of
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          2  my Committee, the Select Committee on Pest Control,

          3  how much we appreciate the support of the Housing

          4  Committee in bringing this piece of legislation

          5  sponsored by my colleague Fiala as quickly as

          6  possible to be addressed.

          7                 Let me just make clear that our

          8  purpose is not to blame the construction industry or

          9  the City or anyone in particular, or any entity in

         10  particular for what we are experiencing. We have a

         11  very serious rat epidemic in our City. It is not a

         12  simple problem, it is a complex problem. One

         13  manifestation of that problem is apparent when there

         14  is construction. What happens is rats that are

         15  normally below ground, upon construction come above

         16  ground. They invade the neighborhood, in terms of

         17  the restaurants in the neighborhood, in terms of the

         18  playgrounds in the neighborhood, in terms of the

         19  homes in the neighborhood, and this is a cause of

         20  alarm for obviously our constituents for all New

         21  Yorkers, and as you know, we are very concerned

         22  about trying to get this under control.

         23                 As my colleague points out, this is

         24  not a silver bullet, but it is nevertheless a giant

         25  step in the right direction and I applaud him for

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            6

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  the initiative that he has taken towards bringing

          3  this to our attention, and providing us with an

          4  opportunity to have a conversation, a dialogue, in

          5  which we will be able to effectively address this as

          6  it is manifest when construction takes place in our

          7  City.

          8                 Thank you very much.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Council Member

         10  Fiala, do you care to have a word before we

         11  commence?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: I do, Mr.

         13  Chairman.

         14                 I thank you for taking up this bill,

         15  and I thank Chairman Perkins for the leadership that

         16  his committee has provided.

         17                 Very quickly let me give you an

         18  overview. "They're creepy, they're spooky, they're

         19  stinking, disease-infested vermin that can harm

         20  children and pets even after they are dead", so says

         21  the New York Post in July. The Daily News, "They are

         22  wretched rodents, which have been running riot this

         23  summer. Let's face it, you are never going to

         24  slaughter them all. They can gnaw through cast iron

         25  pipe, squeeze through the hole the size of a nickel,
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          2  and live in a flooded sewer for four days without

          3  grumbling. Aristotle tried to rid Greece of them and

          4  failed."

          5                 And the Staten Island Advance put it

          6  I think the best, "Rats, rat feces, and the fleas

          7  that the rodents carry pose a serious health hazard.

          8  Rats can carry as many as 25 diseases." So says the

          9  Advance on 7/7.

         10                 The bottom line is this: There is a

         11  health imperative here that needs to be addressed.

         12  They carry a number of bacterial diseases which pose

         13  health threats to our citizens, they also carry

         14  fleas and ticks which also pose health threats.

         15                 There is an economic imperative here.

         16  I mentioned that, I think it was the Daily News who

         17  noted that they gnaw through metal, they gnaw

         18  through wires, they become fire hazards, buildings

         19  have structural problems as a result of this, but

         20  there is an economic impact, an untold economic

         21  impact on this City.

         22                 And, finally, there is a community

         23  pride imperative, any community that has to live

         24  jointly with rats roaming the streets is a community

         25  whose morale is diminished and a sense of community
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          2  pride is lost.

          3                 The bill which I authored, Intro.

          4  677, along with several of my colleagues, seeks to

          5  address a part of the problem.

          6                 I said in an earlier press conference

          7  that no matter how loudly the Pied Piper plays, we

          8  are not going to do away with the rat problem in New

          9  York City, but we can address through legislation

         10  meaningful reforms. We know that construction is a

         11  major component of the rat problem, it is not the

         12  sole component, but it is a major component.

         13                 This legislation aims at curtailing

         14  the proliferation of rats as a consequence of

         15  construction projects. The theory is a simple one,

         16  you contain the rat problem to the site in advance

         17  of any earthwork or foundation work, your rats

         18  shouldn't become my problem. Your site shouldn't

         19  become your neighbors problem, that is what has been

         20  happening. So this legislation would require that

         21  builders conduct appropriate rat abatement measures

         22  before any foundation and earthwork should take

         23  place, and it would be done through a permitting

         24  process.

         25                 I want to thank both Chairman, I want
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          2  to thank the Mayor's Office, and I want to thank

          3  Luis Torres for his leadership on this, and I look

          4  forward to working with each of you in promulgating

          5  this law. This is a common sense solution and will

          6  allow us to finally start to deal with the problem

          7  that goes back all the way prior to Aristotle. He

          8  couldn't get a handle on it, let's at least try to

          9  get a partial handle on it.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Thank you,

         11  Council Member.

         12                 We also have with us Council Member

         13  Nelson and Council Member Madeline Provenzano from

         14  the Bronx.

         15                 Gentlemen at the table, if you will

         16  identify yourselves and the agency you represent, we

         17  will be happy to take your testimony.

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: My

         19  name is James Gibson. I am Assistant Commissioner

         20  for Veterinary and Pest Control Services with the

         21  New York City Department of Health.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Is that the same

         23  title held by a young man who retired about a year

         24  ago? What was his name?

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: Are
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          2  you referring to Randy Dupree?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Randy Dupree?

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: Yes,

          5  that's correct.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: All right, Randy

          7  Dupree. Okay.

          8                 I think you have changed the name of

          9  your Division since then?

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: Yes.

         11  We have done a little bit restructuring.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay.

         13                 MR. SHOR: And my name is Stanley

         14  Shor. I am the Chief of Staff of the Buildings

         15  Department.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: The Department

         17  of Buildings?

         18                 MR. SHOR: Yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay. Whichever

         20  of you choose to go first, you may commence at this

         21  time.

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: Okay.

         23  Good afternoon, Chairman Spigner, and members of the

         24  Committee. As I mentioned, my name is James Gibson,

         25  I am Assistant Commissioner for Veterinary and Pest

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            11

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  Control Services with the New York City Department

          3  of Health.

          4                 I am accompanied by Mr. Stanley Shor,

          5  who is the Chief of Staff at the Department of

          6  Buildings.

          7                 I am pleased to have the opportunity

          8  to testify about rodent control issues and

          9  specifically Intro. 677, which would require that

         10  contractors seeking permits from the Department of

         11  Buildings to perform foundation work in the City,

         12  certify that they have provided appropriate trapping

         13  or baiting of rats.

         14                 Rodent control is a major concern for

         15  most major cities, but it is especially challenging

         16  in New York City, the Nation's most densely

         17  populated city.

         18                 While the Health Department is the

         19  lead agency for enforcing the City's Health Code

         20  with regard to rodent control, every City agency,

         21  every business, and every resident of the City has

         22  an important role to play in the City's war on rats.

         23                 The Health Department's Pest Control

         24  Program conducts inspections, exterminations and lot

         25  cleanings in order to eliminate rodent shelter, and
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          2  reduce the overall rodent population.

          3                 One of our major responsibilities is

          4  to respond to reports of rodent problems from the

          5  general public, community boards, elected officials,

          6  and other agencies and organizations.

          7                 The Department's information and

          8  complaint hot line, which is 212-442-9666, is

          9  available 24 hours a day to receive complaints. The

         10  Department's Pest Control Services Unit investigates

         11  complaints on private properties, and issues notices

         12  to owners if signs of rodents or rodent harborage

         13  are found.

         14                 These conditions must be abated

         15  within five days, or the owner is subject to fines.

         16                 If the owner fails to act, the Pest

         17  Control Unit, or in the case of vacant lots the

         18  Department of Sanitation, will abate the nuisance

         19  and charge the owner for the cost of the abatement.

         20                 Pest control services also treats

         21  street areas, sewers and catch basins with

         22  rodenticides as necessary. Rodent problems reported

         23  on City-owned properties are referred to the

         24  appropriate agency and DOH provides technical

         25  assistance or other support to these agencies as
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          2  required.

          3                 Several years ago, it became evident

          4  that a complaint driven approach alone, while useful

          5  in addressing specific problems in a neighborhood,

          6  was not the most effective way to address area-wide

          7  rodent problems, and that a more comprehensive

          8  approach was needed.

          9                 Consequently, at Mayor Giuliani's

         10  direction, the comprehensive rodent control

         11  initiative was launched in August of 1997. This

         12  three-year neighborhood-based program focused on

         13  areas with the highest level of rodent infestation

         14  and/or complaints.

         15                 Based on historical complaint data

         16  and community board recommendations, 72 15-block

         17  areas were identified for intensive intervention.

         18                 To support these additional programs,

         19  the rodent control budget and staffing levels were

         20  more than doubled.

         21                 A review of the program following the

         22  final phase in November 1999 indicates we are headed

         23  in the right direction. During this period, the

         24  number of inspections has more than doubled from

         25  around 16,000 in Fiscal Year '96, to more than
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          2  37,000 in Fiscal Year 2000, and exterminations have

          3  increased from approximately 35,000 in Fiscal Year

          4  '96, to slightly more than 51,000 in Fiscal Year

          5  2000.

          6                 We have seen improvement in the rate

          7  of compliance by private property owners upon

          8  receiving a DOH order to abate, from 41 percent at

          9  the beginning of the program, to 55 percent at the

         10  end of Phase III of the program.

         11                 The number of reported rodent bites

         12  has also declined from 186 in Fiscal Year 1996 to

         13  157 in Fiscal Year 2000.

         14                 Building on the experience we gained

         15  in this initiative, we have instituted as a

         16  permanent part of our pest control program, an

         17  enhanced program that identifies strategic

         18  geographic areas with rodent problems and developed

         19  customized plans to address them.

         20                 We are working with closely with OEM

         21  as part of a multi-agency rodent task force chaired

         22  by the Deputy Mayor for Operations, Joseph Lhota.

         23                 The Task Force is charged with

         24  coordinating the pest control activities of all City

         25  agencies, and has already established uniform
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          2  policies and procedures for pest control activities

          3  by all City agencies.

          4                 The Task Force is also responsible

          5  for tracking rodent infestations under jurisdictions

          6  of various City agencies.

          7                 The Task Force identifies and directs

          8  remediation efforts at sites with severe

          9  infestations that require the participation of

         10  multiple agencies.

         11                 To ensure an effective response of

         12  these infestations, DOH as the lead agency in the

         13  task force has conducted inter-agency training in

         14  rodenticide application protocols and has developed

         15  an interagency rodent complaint database which is

         16  maintained by the Department of Health.

         17                 It is important to recognize that the

         18  use of rodenticides alone, no matter how extensive,

         19  will not permanently reduce the rodent population.

         20  We must work to eliminate or minimize rodents access

         21  to a regular supply of food and water and harborage,

         22  mainly through improved sanitation, and garbage

         23  management.

         24                 This effort will require the

         25  assistance of all New York City communities and
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          2  businesses.

          3                 To enlist their help, the Department

          4  of Health is working on a public awareness campaign

          5  that will be launched in October to educate

          6  residents and communities on how they can help

          7  reduce rodent infestations in their homes and

          8  surrounding neighborhoods.

          9                 We have recently hired a public

         10  health educator to help coordinate and expand on

         11  public outreach and education activities on rodent

         12  abatement. These activities will include

         13  coordinating and training seminars and expanding our

         14  work with community boards, home-owner associations,

         15  and other community-based forums to inform and

         16  educate City residents.

         17                 To facilitate this expansion, we have

         18  created a program to make more Health Department

         19  personnel available for community forums. A concept

         20  which has been extremely successful in addressing

         21  community questions and community concerns about the

         22  West Nile virus.

         23                 We strongly support the concept of

         24  assuring appropriate rat abatement at certain

         25  building sites proposed in Intro. 677, and would
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          2  like to commend Council Member Fiala on this

          3  innovative approach.

          4                 Major building activities frequently

          5  disrupt rodent habitats, bringing them to the

          6  surface where they can infest nearby neighborhoods.

          7                 This problem is already addressed in

          8  most, if not all City contracts for City-financed

          9  building projects. This legislation would extend

         10  rodent abatement to all building projects throughout

         11  the City.

         12                 Currently, the Health Department, our

         13  Office of Pest Control Services investigates and

         14  certifies that private contractors have properly

         15  baited buildings that are to be demolished pursuant

         16  to a requirement in the Building Department's

         17  regulations.

         18                 These regulations require that the

         19  structures to be demolished be treated effectively

         20  for the extermination of rats and certified by

         21  either a licensed exterminator or by the Health

         22  Department.

         23                 DOH has inspected 896 demolition

         24  sites in calendar year 1999, and so far this year we

         25  have inspected about 800 sites.
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          2                 We understand from the Department of

          3  Buildings the number of new building sites, all of

          4  which involve some foundation work, is much greater

          5  than the number of demolitions. But we believe we

          6  can work with the Department of Buildings to

          7  institute an effective system so as to implement

          8  this idea, including the establishment of

          9  appropriate protocols to assure that private

         10  contractors are using the most effective rat

         11  abatement methods.

         12                 In summary, I would like to express

         13  the Health Department's appreciation for the

         14  contributions of the City Council members, and

         15  especially the sponsors of this legislation in

         16  supporting our war on rats. We look forward to

         17  working with you on the enactment of this bill. This

         18  legislation will provide an important tool in the

         19  multi-faceted approach that is necessary if we are

         20  to make further progress in rodent control in the

         21  City.

         22                 With our combined efforts, that

         23  include programmatic changes, such as those

         24  represented in Intro. 677, improved interagency

         25  partnerships, and increased education and outreach,
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          2  we can permanently reduce overall conditions that

          3  are conducive to rodent infestations, and thereby

          4  reduce the rodent population and decrease the need

          5  for the application of rodenticides.

          6                 Thank you, again, for giving me the

          7  opportunity to testify before you today, I will be

          8  happy to take any questions you may have.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Sure, thank you

         10  very much.

         11                 Should we go to Stanley Shor? Do you

         12  want to make your statement?

         13                 MR. SHOR: I don't have a prepared

         14  statement today. Basically the Department of

         15  Buildings supports the legislation. It would only

         16  require a minor adjustment in our operations, and we

         17  are happy to accommodate you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Thank you, Mr.

         19  Shor.

         20                 Mr. Gibson, I was just looking at

         21  your statement and you support the legislation, but

         22  yet you say, you imply that there are existing rules

         23  and regulations to address the problem. I mean, I am

         24  not just layering on legislation just to do busy

         25  work, can you, and do you believe that you can
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          2  address the problem of rats at construction sites

          3  through rule changes, or do you need legislation to

          4  do your job? You know what your job is.

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: Sure.

          6  This legislation would expand what we currently do.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: But do you need

          8  legislation to expand what you currently do?

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: I

         10  believe this legislation will certainly be helpful

         11  in expanding our role.

         12                 Basically what we do is we focus on

         13  demolition sites, not all construction sites.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: I am just asking

         15  you that.

         16                 Do you need legislation to do what

         17  you know needs to be done, or just go out and do it?

         18                 Is there anything in the

         19  Administrative Code that prohibits you from doing

         20  your job or whatever you think is necessary -- are

         21  there changes that are needed in the Administrative

         22  Code, or the rules and regs, to enable you to do

         23  your job?

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: Yes,

         25  sir, I believe there is.
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          2                 The rules and regulations apply

          3  specifically to demolition sites, not construction

          4  sites.

          5                 And as was pointed out by the

          6  Council, there are many building sites that also

          7  disrupt foundations and have earthwork. So, that

          8  does not apply to those sites where there is not

          9  demolition at all.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Let me ask you

         11  this question: If you receive a complaint about a

         12  rat infestation, do you, from your testimony you

         13  send out an investigator and if there is evidence,

         14  the person is mandated within five days, according

         15  to your testimony, to correct the problem. And if

         16  they do not correct the problem, you do it and

         17  charge the property owner.

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: Yes,

         19  sir, that is correct.

         20                 But the intent of this legislation,

         21  as I read it, is prevention. And I think prevention

         22  is always the way to go. You want to really prevent

         23  the disruption of the rodent habitat so that the

         24  rodents actually are impacted prior to the work so

         25  that the neighborhoods are not infested with rodents
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          2  from the disruption in their habitats from the

          3  construction activity.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Now,

          5  construction work disturbs the habitat is your

          6  testimony?

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: That's

          8  correct.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: So, until the

         10  work begins you don't know of the existence often

         11  times of the rodents, of the rats; am I correct? You

         12  don't know.

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: That's

         14  correct. But specifically if you are going to do any

         15  kind of ground work, there is going to be disruption

         16  of rodent habitats, and it's very likely that they

         17  exist there, given the plentiful supply of food in

         18  the City, and I think that you can be certain that

         19  there are going to be some disruptions in rodent

         20  habitat. So, again, this legislation I think will

         21  prevent those rodents that are in that habitat that

         22  will be disturbed from actually coming to the

         23  surface and possibly infecting surrounding areas.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: How would you,

         25  as a professional exterminator, go about
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          2  exterminating a potential construction site?

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: Well,

          4  prior to any work being done, you can certainly lay

          5  down traps. You can install rodenticides, you can

          6  investigate where there is in fact a rodent

          7  infestation on the site, you can go in the

          8  basements, you can go around the surrounding area,

          9  and chances are you will find some signs, and so

         10  basically you would take aggressive measures to

         11  exterminate those rodents from that site.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: And does that

         13  relieve the contractor of any further obligation

         14  once he has done these so-called preemptives and

         15  they can then commence work? Is he no longer

         16  responsible for rodents --

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: It is

         18  something, as I mentioned in the testimony, we have

         19  to work out with the Department of Buildings a

         20  mechanism to ensure that we, either the Department

         21  of Health, or through some self certification, that

         22  their extermination measures are adequate, but

         23  certainly that would definitely have a positive

         24  impact on disturbance of their habitat and fewer

         25  rats would be in surrounding areas.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Mr. Shor, let me

          3  ask you a question.

          4                 MR. SHOR: Sure.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: In your

          6  experience with issuing permits and enforcing

          7  Department of Buildings rules and regulations, have

          8  you ever had the experience where the discovery of

          9  rats had been a major problem to the extent that you

         10  had to issue some kind of orders regarding

         11  extermination?

         12                 MR. SHOR: In the four years that I

         13  have been at the Buildings Department, the issue has

         14  never risen to the Commissioner's Office attention.

         15  It is not to say that there might not have been rat

         16  problems, but typically if there is a rat problem,

         17  we call the Health Department and they take care of

         18  the problem.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: So, you have

         20  never had a construction site disrupted or disturbed

         21  to the extent, to your knowledge, because the

         22  complaints go to the Department --

         23                 MR. SHOR: Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Mr. Gibson, have

         25  you ever had --
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: We

          3  have, and so we have in fact had numerous complaints

          4  along those lines.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: You get

          6  complaints anyway, but I mean --

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: We

          8  would inspect the property if we did see signs of

          9  rodents or rodent habitats, then we would issue a

         10  Commissioner's order requiring them to abate those

         11  premises. But again, the spirit of this law, and to

         12  support this wholeheartedly, is its prevention.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Let me ask you a

         14  question.

         15                 Since Mr. Dupree left and you have

         16  taken over his arduous responsibilities, have you

         17  had experience with the construction site to the

         18  extent that you had to say shut the job down, or to

         19  suspend work or to find the non-cooperating

         20  contractor to the point where you felt it was

         21  necessary?

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: No, we

         23  haven't had that instance.

         24                 As I indicated in my testimony, we

         25  have been actually getting a higher compliance rate
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          2  from the private property owners and the building

          3  construction folks. It is relatively a minor expense

          4  in the overall scheme of the construction, so they

          5  do not want to risk that kind of shut down to their

          6  project. So, no, they typically comply with our

          7  orders.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Mr. Shor, in

          9  your years you have never known of a case where you

         10  had to shut a site down and Mr. Gibson neither.

         11                 Mr. Nelson, do you have a question?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: You covered

         13  most of them, Chair. It seems to be more difficult

         14  to exterminate rats. Do you feel that the population

         15  is becoming immune to the stuff that has been used

         16  in the past? And are we using something that

         17  significantly different right now?

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: Yes,

         19  we are using second generation anticoagulants.

         20                 There has been some resistance to the

         21  first generation anticoagulants. We are not seeing

         22  any kind of resistance to the second generation. So,

         23  what we are currently using has been very effective.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: It's called

         25  "second generation"?
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: That's

          3  what it's called.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Are there any

          5  sterile mice or rats around?

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: I'm

          7  sorry?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Distribute

          9  them to the population? No, something like that has

         10  been done with the insect population, sterilizing

         11  mice and rats, I just threw that one out.

         12                 We have heard of instances where

         13  construction jobs are temporarily halted to conduct

         14  rat abatement. How regularly does something like

         15  this approximately happen in this City?

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: As I

         17  mentioned a moment ago, there have been no

         18  occurrences since I have taken over.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: That's been

         20  how long?

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: That's

         22  only been about four and a half months.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Since that

         24  point.

         25                 Nothing back in --
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: I can

          3  certainly investigate but I don't have that

          4  information with me.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Any particular

          6  type of construction that may bring out rodents more

          7  than the other type of construction?

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: I

          9  don't have that information. I can certainly do some

         10  investigations and get back to you, if you would

         11  like.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: It seems to be

         13  apparent whenever there is construction, I don't

         14  think there is a person in this room that hasn't

         15  been involved in a conversation some time in their

         16  life, that it wasn't that there has been rodents in

         17  a certain area that have come out of the ground

         18  where somebody has not replied, oh, yes, they are

         19  doing construction somewhere's else. So, I think we

         20  can safely assume that it is just an ongoing problem

         21  whenever there is construction.

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: There

         23  is currently a construction boom, as everyone is

         24  aware, in New York City, and whenever you do any

         25  kind of earthwork, foundation work, you will disturb

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            29

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  habitats so they will become more visible.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Thank you.

          4                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Council Member

          6  Perkins, please.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you,

          8  Mr. Chairman.

          9                 Thank you, Commissioner Gibson.

         10                 Was there a time when rat abatement

         11  was being done in connection with construction, do

         12  you know?

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: Well,

         14  the City requires that for all of City contracts, I

         15  think --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Exactly what

         17  does it require? Can you just spell it out?

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: Yes.

         19                 Well, for demolition contracts it

         20  requires, the Department of Health is involved in

         21  demolition contracts, so basically we would certify

         22  that their abatement program is up to par, and we

         23  would actually give them approval. If we decided

         24  that it was not up to par, then we would reject them

         25  and they would have to reapply and come up with the
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          2  different extermination methodology.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: So, an

          4  abatement plan is given to you by the contractor.

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: That's

          6  correct.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: And you

          8  review that plan?

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: We

         10  review the plan and we actually go on site to see

         11  what their abatement plan is. So, we don't just

         12  review the paperwork, we actually go on site to see

         13  what their plan is, and then we determine whether or

         14  not it is effective.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Now, in the

         16  case of construction, you do nothing?

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: That's

         18  right. We do not do anything.

         19                 However, the City contracts, as I

         20  mentioned, require in their contracts that

         21  exterminators do come up with a plan --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: For

         23  construction.

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:

         25  Construction for City contracts.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: So, for

          3  instance, when you say a City contract, there are

          4  all kinds of City contracts, a lot of the

          5  construction boom, especially in certain

          6  neighborhoods, relates to housing that was once on

          7  City-owned land, would that type of construction

          8  require abatement program?

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: If the

         10  construction is City financed it would require that.

         11                 Now, there is a lot of private funded

         12  construction that is not, and I think this

         13  legislation would cover that, and I think that is

         14  one of the reasons why the Department of Health is

         15  very supportive of this, because it will also extend

         16  that to all construction activities in the City.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: So right now,

         18  for instance, private construction has no

         19  requirement and you engage in no enforcement of them

         20  doing any kind of abatement?

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: Unless

         22  it is demolition activities.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: So, what

         24  happens when rats come out under a private

         25  construction situation?
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: We

          3  would get complaints or we would either observe that

          4  ourselves as we do our inspections, and then we

          5  would do an inspection, we would determine that --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: So, it's a

          7  complaint-driven type of enforcement?

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: It's

          9  either complaint driven, or, again, we are proactive

         10  in the sense that our inspectors are out in the

         11  communities, if they do observe a rodent infestation

         12  at a construction site, they would certainly act on

         13  it.

         14                 So, we don't especially wait for

         15  complaints, but complaints is one of the ways we are

         16  notified about these infestations.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Just so I am

         18  clear, so, in the non-City contracts, construction

         19  jobs, you are not simply complaint driven?

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: That's

         21  correct.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: In order for

         23  you to get started on some sort of enforcement?

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: That's

         25  correct.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: If your

          3  workers, inspectors, observe, because they are in

          4  the field, private construction taking place, they

          5  will make an inspection for rodents?

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: They

          7  will make a cursory inspection to determine whether

          8  or not there are any signs of infestation, that's

          9  correct.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: All right.

         11  Thank you very much.

         12                 Let me ask one or two more quick

         13  questions.

         14                 How many earthwork permits has the

         15  Department of Buildings issued during the last three

         16  fiscal years? And under what circumstances would one

         17  seek a permit soley for earthwork excavation?

         18                 MR. SHOR: Okay, we don't have a

         19  specific category for earthwork permits, we have new

         20  building permits and we have demolition permits, and

         21  we have alterations that involve the extension of

         22  foundations that would involve earthwork.

         23                 So, we don't have numbers available

         24  for how many of the alternation permits involve

         25  foundation, I can tell you new building permits and
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          2  I can tell you demolition permits, if you like.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay.

          4                 I just want to be clear; what are

          5  earthwork permits?

          6                 MR. SHOR: Well, from what we would

          7  understand, that would be any permit that involves

          8  the movement of the earth, basically disrupting the

          9  habitats for the rats.

         10                 I mean, we will have some situations

         11  where you will have vacant land where they will come

         12  for a specific permit just to move around the land,

         13  but that is very minor in the whole scheme of

         14  things.

         15                 We would interpret this bill to mean

         16  new building permits, demolition permits, and any

         17  other alterations that require foundation work.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I want to be

         19  clear, with respect to earthwork permits, you

         20  presently do not keep records?

         21                 MR. SHOR: Correct.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Why?

         23                 MR. SHOR: It is not a specific

         24  category. We keep records on the basis, the category

         25  of new buildings, alterations and demolitions. It's
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          2  part of a new building application process.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: It's part of

          4  a new buildings permit application?

          5                 MR. SHOR: Right.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: So, the

          7  numbers you are about to give me are new building

          8  permits, which include earthwork permits?

          9                 MR. SHOR: Correct.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay.

         11                 MR. SHOR: I mean, there may be some

         12  rare cases where someone has a vacant lot and they

         13  are just moving around the earth, but that we would

         14  just put that into a new building category.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: So the use of

         16  earthwork in our title is not necessarily relevant

         17  effectively to what we are talking about?

         18                 MR. SHOR: I mean, it is not a

         19  specific term that we use.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay.

         21                 MR. SHOR: But we understand what the

         22  point is, and that is how we would interpret it.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Let me see if

         24  you can give us those numbers that you have been --

         25                 MR. SHOR: Okay.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: On new

          3  building permits and demo permits.

          4                 MR. SHOR: Okay. We can give you the

          5  last three fiscal years, if you like. 1997 there

          6  were a total of 4,239 new buildings.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I am sorry,

          8  you will have to speak up, I can't hear you.

          9                 MR. SHOR: Sorry.

         10                 For calendar year 1997, there were

         11  about 4,239 new buildings, and calendar year '98,

         12  4,011. Calendar year '99, 4,673. And for the Year

         13  2000 to date, as of August, was 3,225.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay,

         15  Councilman?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: What about

         17  the demolition?

         18                 MR. SHOR: Okay, for demolition, for

         19  calendar year 1997, there were 1,661 permits. For

         20  '98, 1,921. For '99, 2,381. And for the Year 2000,

         21  as of August there were 1,832.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you

         23  very much, Mr. Chairman.

         24                 I would like to take a second turn.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: So, Mr. Shor,
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          2  there can be as many rats above the earth as below

          3  the earth?

          4                 MR. SHOR: I mean, there can be rats

          5  above the earth. I am not an expert on rats.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Pardon me?

          7                 MR. SHOR:  I am not sure what you are

          8  asking.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Maybe that is

         10  appropriate for the Health Department. In other

         11  words, when you move the earth, you do disturb, but

         12  when you tear down a building that has been

         13  standing, you can also disturb habitats.

         14                 MR. SHOR: Well, you will be

         15  disturbing the foundation, which will be disturbing

         16  the earth.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay, Council

         18  Member Fiala.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Thank you, Mr.

         20  Chairman.

         21                 Commissioner, I really just have one

         22  question, because I don't believe in beating a dead

         23  horse to death. We have by some estimates in excess

         24  of 50 million of these vermin running around the

         25  City. They are disgusting. They are disease ridden,
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          2  they are slimy, they are creepy, they are crawly,

          3  they are creatures of the night that seem to wind up

          4  roaming the streets during the day and terrorizing

          5  senior citizens and children at night. Whether it is

          6  in the South Shore of Staten Island where they are

          7  taking refuge in the back yards of my constituents,

          8  inside playhouses, children's playhouses, or laundry

          9  rooms, or finding their ways into people's

         10  basements, eating away at pools, or in the Bronx,

         11  lower Manhattan, Rego Park in Queens, you name it,

         12  they are there.

         13                 You made a statement that I think

         14  gets to the crux of the matter, and I want to give

         15  you just an opportunity to either reaffirm it or

         16  suggest that you want to revise it. But you said

         17  that you believe that this legislation would greatly

         18  assist the City in its efforts; is that your

         19  contention?

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: There are

         22  components of this bill that are worthy of

         23  exploration and implementation. The language may

         24  need to be addressed, that's the purpose of the

         25  hearing, we vet these things in a hearing setting,
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          2  but there is by all accounts a deficiency we could

          3  be doing more, we will never do enough, the great

          4  Aristotle didn't do enough to get rid of them, and

          5  we inherited them. But there is more that we could

          6  be doing and it seems that incorporating some kind

          7  of a permitting process or an administrative process

          8  with respect to demolition and earthwork and

          9  foundation work is an appropriate means of

         10  redressing at least a component of this?

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: That's

         12  correct. It's one important tool. There are many,

         13  many others, but this is certainly one tool that I

         14  think it would significantly help the situation.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: All right,

         16  thank you.

         17                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Stanley. Stanley

         19  Michels. Council Member.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I don't know

         21  what kind of research is being done --

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: I am

         23  sorry, I can't hear you.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Can you hear

         25  all right now?
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: Yes, I

          3  can hear you.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Okay. Some

          5  years ago we had a big drive, especially even around

          6  here where there was work being done taking down

          7  some buildings, to find the proper type of poison to

          8  kill them, not abate them but kill them. This word

          9  of abatement, that is wonderful. Is there anything

         10  you can do in the market by way of materials that

         11  really -- they seem to -- you get them initially and

         12  then they develop an immunity to the type of poison

         13  to use.

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: Well,

         15  again, as I mentioned, we are using second

         16  generation anticoagulants, which are very effective.

         17                 The first generation actually are

         18  effective as well, however, there has been some

         19  resistance, as mentioned by one of the Council

         20  members here, what we use is the second generation

         21  which actually is quicker acting than the previous

         22  anticoagulants they were using.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: So it kills

         24  them?

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: Yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: How about

          3  rendering them impotent?

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: I'm

          5  sorry?

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Do we have

          7  anything to try to render them impotent so they

          8  don't propagate?

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: There

         10  --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: To use a big

         12  word, propagate?  Propagate means they can reproduce

         13  more.

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: That's

         15  right.

         16                 There are no products commercially

         17  available with regard to reducing the reproductive

         18  cycle of rodents. There are things that are being

         19  developed that we are very interested in and we are

         20  pursuing.

         21                 You know, we are looking at many,

         22  many innovative ways. This Administration is very

         23  committed to removing this problem from the City of

         24  New York, and we are looking at all avenues possible

         25  to do so.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            42

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Now I am

          3  going to ask you a crazy question, because you

          4  always ask this when you talk about environmental

          5  issues like this, and this is an environmental

          6  issue.

          7                 Is there any useful purpose for these

          8  rats? Are they part of a food for anybody else?

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: For

         10  what?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Because when

         12  we talk about killing off certain animals, there is

         13  always an unintended consequence. Is there any

         14  unintended consequence for moving the rat population

         15  from New York?

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: There

         17  is nothing that I can think of that would support a

         18  need for rodents anywhere, for certainly rats --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I mean, there

         20  is a need to have people who are people who kill

         21  rodents, it's an industry here.

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: I

         23  suppose that might be one thing --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I suppose

         25  that would be an unintended consequence.
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: Yes, I

          3  think that would be something that people would

          4  welcome.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Well, that's

          6  right, owls eat rats. I remember Commissioner Stern

          7  introduced a certain number of owls in Central Park

          8  for the purposes of ridding of the rats. Has that

          9  been effective?

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: I

         11  don't know. I don't know much about that program,

         12  unfortunately.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I wonder if

         14  you would look into it because I think that would be

         15  important. Maybe it would be more effective.

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: I

         17  think there are a number of things we can do. I

         18  think that sort of thing would probably have a small

         19  impact, but it is another tool that we can use and

         20  it is an environmentally friendly tool that

         21  certainly would be beneficial.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Owls could be

         23  very beneficial.

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: There

         25  are also red tail harts in Central Park that I think
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          2  have been introduced that are also predators for

          3  rodents, and, again, I think that would have some

          4  impact on the population.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: It has been

          6  suggested that hawks also eat rats?

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: I am

          8  sorry?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Hawks also?

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: Hawks,

         11  that's correct. Hawks.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Any other

         13  animals that we know?

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: There

         15  probably are --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: They are kind

         17  of big for the cats.

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: You

         19  know, there have been some suggestions of

         20  introducing other species that are predators of

         21  rats, but then you introduce other problems. I am

         22  certainly not an advocate of that sort of thing.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Eco balance,

         24  you have got to be careful of it.

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: That's
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          2  correct. That's correct. You don't want to introduce

          3  one problem and solve something and then have a

          4  bigger problem down the road.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: It is my

          6  original question. We get rid of the rats and we are

          7  left with something that the rats do.

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: No, I

          9  don't think there are any repercussions.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: So they are

         11  clearly expendable?

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: They

         13  are certainly expendable.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Thank you

         15  very much.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: They have no

         17  value.

         18                 Mr. Gibson, you said this legislation

         19  would extend rodent abatement to all building

         20  projects in the City, but you are not prohibited, as

         21  a matter of fact, you are required to assert your

         22  authority wherever rat manifest themselves, right?

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: That's

         24  correct.

         25                 But, again, let me reiterate. This
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          2  bill, and, again, we are very supportive of this

          3  bill --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: I understand

          5  that.

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:

          7  Precisely because it is a prevention effort to

          8  reduce the number of rodents prior to disruption of

          9  their habitat so that they are not going to be a

         10  nuisance to the neighborhood and potentially infest

         11  neighboring areas.

         12                 The key to this is prevention, and

         13  that is what the Department of Health really focuses

         14  on, prevention of disease.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: You say, again,

         16  in your testimony, "Currently the Health Department

         17  offers offense control services, investigates and

         18  certifies that private contractors have properly

         19  baited buildings that are to be demolished pursuant

         20  to a requirement in the Building Department's

         21  regulations. These regulations require that these

         22  structures to be demolished be treated effectively

         23  for the extermination of rats and certified by

         24  either a licensed exterminator or the Health

         25  Department."
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          2                 What are the requirements that a

          3  building has been effectively treated? Is it two

          4  pounds per inch, or is it three rats per trap, or

          5  what is your formula to determine it is

          6  appropriately abated?

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: There

          8  are specific requirements, and if you would like me

          9  to read them to you I can.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: I don't mind.

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: I can

         12  certainly do that. Let me just dig it out of my pile

         13  here.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Let me ask you a

         15  question while you are looking.

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: Yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: What are the

         18  requirements to be an exterminator? Do you have to

         19  have a license or take a training course?

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: Yes,

         21  you do. You have to take a training course and you

         22  have to be certified by the state. You have to take

         23  a test.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: How many now are

         25  required in meeting the requirements for the
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          2  license?

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: I

          4  believe it is an eight-hour course.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Eight hours.

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: Eight

          7  hours, that's correct. And you are required to pass

          8  a test before you can be certified by the State.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay.

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: What

         11  we determine to be adequate extermination is that

         12  exterminators are required to exterminate the

         13  basement area and the first floor of the premises.

         14  Those are the areas that are typically infested with

         15  rodents. They typically do not go to higher floors.

         16                 The stations, the bait stations must

         17  be set four to ten feet apart around the perimeter

         18  of the room, the hallway, the cellar or any other

         19  areas that are going to be exterminated. There needs

         20  to be at least one treatment every five to ten days

         21  prior to the demolition. The bait must be laid in an

         22  open, dry area, not required to be in bait stations,

         23  so that this will cut down on the theft of the bait

         24  stations or potential exposure to non-target

         25  species.
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          2                 And exterminators are required to use

          3  baits approved by the New York State Department of

          4  Environmental Conservation, which regulates the

          5  exterminators.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: And you don't

          7  feel the contractor himself or herself can do that?

          8  You have to hire an exterminator to know how far the

          9  spacing, and those instructions seem rather clear to

         10  me, and I haven't had the eight hours --

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: No,

         12  they certainly are informed of our requirements. We

         13  send inspectors out to confirm that they are

         14  complying with our requirements. If they do not

         15  comply, they do not get approved and they cannot

         16  move forward with their demolition.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Council Member

         18  Perkins, you had some other questions?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you.

         20                 Let me ask you, so, on the city

         21  construction jobs, our inspectors go out upon

         22  receiving a plan for abatement and rodent

         23  eradication, right?

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: Yes.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: On the
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          2  private sector jobs, how is that done, if it is done

          3  at all? Or how will it be done?

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: Again,

          5  that is something we will have to work out with the

          6  Department of Buildings. It is not something, we

          7  have started discussions on this, we haven't

          8  finalized it, so we don't know exactly how it is

          9  going to be working.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Is it likely

         11  that our inspectors would be involved with that?

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: When

         13  you say "our inspectors" --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: The City

         15  inspectors.

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: Do you

         17  mean the Department of Health inspectors --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Yes.

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:-- Or

         20  Buildings.

         21                 Again, that is something that we have

         22  to work out. There could be some self-certification

         23  involved in this.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:

         25  Self-certification?
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:

          3  Self-certification, which would require licensed

          4  exterminators to self-certify that they have

          5  performed this, and they could forfeit their

          6  licenses if they falsify that. And there could be

          7  spotchecks to ensure that that happens.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: The plan that

          9  has to be submitted, what does it basically say?

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:

         11  Basically it defines what their extermination

         12  procedures are.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Typically

         14  what would those procedures --

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: It

         16  would define what kind of materials are being used,

         17  what kind of rodenticides are being used, the

         18  frequency of application, the type of bait stations

         19  that are being used, the location of the baiting, it

         20  would basically require the nuts and bolts. It is

         21  very simple.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: At some point

         23  your inspectors go to make sure that that has

         24  actually taken place?

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:
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          2  Currently we do with demolitions.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Only with

          4  demolitions.

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: Yes.

          6  And as I indicated in the testimony, the number of

          7  building inspections is significantly greater than

          8  in the number of demolitions so that would require

          9  much more manpower, and, again, we are working with

         10  the Department of Buildings to determine how that

         11  will work.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I want to

         13  just change the subject real quick, to go back to

         14  your testimony on another subject.

         15                 You say there were 51,000 dead rats

         16  in FY 2000; how do you know? How do you count these?

         17  How do you determine how many rats that you killed?

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: No,

         19  there were 51,000 I believe exterminations.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:

         21  Exterminations.

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: Right.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: What does

         24  that mean? Is that a dead rat? Or is that just a --

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: No.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            53

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  That means we perform extermination measures, which

          3  would be rodenticiding.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay.

          5                 So, you don't have an idea of what

          6  the results of those efforts were?

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: No.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay.

          9                 And in terms of rat bites --

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: Well,

         11  let me say this: We do have quantitative evidence to

         12  support that the rodent populations have been

         13  decreased.

         14                 We don't have quantitative, we don't

         15  count rats, it would be impossible to do so.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: What evidence

         17  do you use? What evidence do you use now?

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: We

         19  basically go back to the areas and determine whether

         20  or not the investigation has been diminished, and

         21  it's basically like I said qualitative. You can

         22  determine either from interviews with the residents

         23  or just by observation on the number of boroughs,

         24  any other kinds of signs of rodent infestation, such

         25  as droppings. There are a number of signs that
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          2  inspectors look for, and if those are not present,

          3  then you can assume that the infestation has been

          4  mitigated.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Now, the

          6  number of rodent bites you indicated has declined

          7  from 186 in FY '96 to 157 in FY 2000, and how did

          8  you determine that there has been a decline?

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:

         10  Basically we get reports from a number of sources,

         11  physicians. Basically we get calls from individuals,

         12  we get calls from other City agencies, HPD, for

         13  instance, and indicate to us that there has been a

         14  rat bite, in which case we investigate it and we

         15  determine if there has been an infestation that

         16  needs to be taken care of, and those are our number

         17  one priority. We respond to those within 24 hours.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: So, so far

         19  this year you have 157 rat bites.

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: That is 157

         22  in eight months.

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: No,

         24  that was last year, fiscal year.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Yes, okay.
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          2  So, what is 2001 so far?

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: The

          4  numbers are actually running around 157, if you

          5  extrapolate that.

          6                 We had six in July, I don't know the

          7  number in August. There were a little bit more than

          8  that in August. So, the numbers are not increasing

          9  this year significantly.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Finally, when

         11  there is a rat bite, do you get reports as to any

         12  other types of infections in addition to the bite?

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: No. If

         14  it was reported by a physician, then we determine

         15  whether or not there were any complications from

         16  that. But typically there aren't. Rat bits certainly

         17  aren't associated with rabies, and very rarely would

         18  they be associated with any other disease.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay, thank you,

         21  Mr. Gibson and --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Mr. Chairman?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Oh, Council

         24  Member Nelson.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: A quick
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          2  question. Hasn't it been made by local law mandated

          3  that every physician and hospital, the Health

          4  Department had to be notified of any particular rat

          5  bites or bat bites and things like this?

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: I

          7  don't know if it is mandated. Again, we do get calls

          8  from the physicians. Or if we just get a call from a

          9  citizen saying that they were bitten by a rat. I

         10  have just been told that it is required.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: If it isn't,

         12  it should be.

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: It is.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Thank you.

         15                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Gentlemen, thank

         17  you very much.

         18                 We have now from the community,

         19  business community, Nicholas LaPorte, the Associated

         20  Builders and Owners.

         21                 Anyone else requesting to speak, you

         22  are to fill out a request slip with the Sergeant at

         23  the table.

         24                 So, the only one we have received is

         25  Nicholas LaPorte, and after Mr. LaPorte concludes
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          2  his testimony this meeting will be adjourned.

          3                 Mr. LaPorte, if you will identify

          4  yourself, sir, and the organization you represent,

          5  we would be happy to take your testimony.

          6                 MR. LaPORTE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          7  My name is Nicholas LaPorte. I am the Executive

          8  Director of the Associated Builders and Owners of

          9  Greater New York.

         10                 I would like to thank you for

         11  inviting us to testify at this hearing today and

         12  allowing us to give our views on this important

         13  piece of legislation. I would like to say at the

         14  outset that I am here to testify against the

         15  legislation, however, because we are faced with

         16  another example of a problem of the City being laid

         17  at the doorstep of the real estate industry.

         18                 It's our position that there is a

         19  compelling need to deal with the rat problem in the

         20  City and we don't mean to downplay that, but it is

         21  our belief that this legislation will accomplish

         22  very little against the war against the rat

         23  population.

         24                 It requires, as we know, baiting and

         25  trapping of rats on a building site, as a
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          2  requirement or contingency to being issued a

          3  building permit or foundation permit.

          4                 This does not come close to

          5  successfully dealing with the rat problem in the

          6  City. We have all seen the rats, the population of

          7  rats roaming the City streets and they settle very

          8  comfortably in their nests several feet below the

          9  ground. The root of our problem lies not with

         10  building sites, but with the environment that we

         11  create that promotes propagation of rats. So, we

         12  have to take a look at our sanitation practices and

         13  our collection methodologies. I think that is one of

         14  the ways to deal with the rat population in the City

         15  and the problem.

         16                 Each night in every neighborhood in

         17  the City we leave a virtual sidewalk buffet for rats

         18  to feast on. We place food waste in plastic garbage

         19  bags that are literally gnawed into by the rats,

         20  which provides them ongoing sustenance contributing

         21  to their growth and propagation.

         22                 Sporadic extermination programs that

         23  have been formed by the City are so far not

         24  sufficient to stem this tide. The burden of this

         25  battle must fall on this City through more creative
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          2  sanitation disposal methods that reduce or eliminate

          3  feeding opportunities.

          4                 Food waste must be handled in a

          5  manner that either removes it from the City

          6  sidewalks or disposes of it in receptacles that are

          7  more reliable than plastic bags.

          8                 I would suggest that the City

          9  encourage the use of food waste disposal as a way of

         10  dealing and mitigating with this issue.

         11                 Adding to this component would mean

         12  that an exterminator must be brought in, traps have

         13  to be set and baited and a period of time has past

         14  to ensure successful examination. I might point out

         15  at this time that the bill provides for none of

         16  that, no guidelines for that, in terms of what is

         17  expected by a contractor on a building site, it just

         18  says that it has to be baited and trapped. It

         19  doesn't mean there is a certain number that have to

         20  be killed, a certain number have to be collected,

         21  how long does it have to be baited for, things like

         22  that.

         23                 In addition to what I perceive to be

         24  the ineffectiveness of this bill, it is going to add

         25  thousands of dollars in the cost of construction.
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          2  And this is money for an exercise that is flawed

          3  from the outset.

          4                 The larger the site, the more

          5  expensive the process. Imagine the logical problems

          6  on a development site in Staten Island, where

          7  several hundred acres may be involved. This is an

          8  expensive and an intrusive requirement.

          9                 By the way, Council Member Fiala,

         10  that was not to your benefit, I just happen to be

         11  somewhat familiar with the building lots on Staten

         12  Island and know that this could run into a big

         13  problem out there.

         14                 In a time when the City is

         15  desperately trying to find ways to fund or to

         16  encourage affordable housing, this bill that has

         17  been introduced just adds another hurdle to the

         18  building process, a process that already requires

         19  expediters to move a project along.

         20                 In summary, we at Associated Builders

         21  and Owners are strongly opposed to this legislation

         22  as it once again lays responsibility at the real

         23  estate industry's door for a duty that clearly

         24  belongs to the City. This legislation will result in

         25  an ineffective process that will add time and
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          2  expense to the cost of construction and add one more

          3  reason to the list of reasons why builders shy away

          4  from New York City.

          5                 Again, I would like to thank you for

          6  this opportunity, and I will be happy to answer any

          7  questions you may have.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Thank you, Mr.

          9  LaPorte. I am not surprised that you would oppose

         10  this. But how do you conclude that it would add

         11  thousands of dollars to a construction project? Are

         12  exterminating services that expensive?

         13                 MR. LaPORTE: Well, again, Council

         14  Member, as I pointed out, the larger the site, the

         15  larger the expense.

         16                 It could be a very nominal,

         17  admittedly nominal expense, it could be $1,000 or

         18  $2,000, or it could add $15,000, $20,000, $30,000,

         19  it depends on the size of the site. If you have got

         20  acres, as I pointed out, on Staten Island, it is

         21  going to add several thousands of dollars to the

         22  site. And we don't know, I can't give you exact

         23  numbers because we don't know what the parameters

         24  are of this legislation. I don't know, is it an

         25  abatement process, a trapping and baiting process
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          2  for ten days, for five days.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Let me ask you a

          4  question first.

          5                 What do your members do now when they

          6  commenced on a new building with excavating or

          7  demolition; what do they do now?

          8                 MR. LaPORTE: If there is a rodent

          9  problem, they don't have to, but they would, for

         10  their own purposes, do some form of extermination if

         11  they so chose. It may not be necessary.

         12                 The fact is, that when you excavate

         13  at a site, that's the first time -- you are not

         14  going to get surface rats, this is not going to

         15  solve a problem for surface rats in a very big way.

         16  The rodents' nests are below the ground, and the

         17  first time they are disturbed is when the bulldozer

         18  hits the ground. But we don't know where those are.

         19  We don't know where the nests are, and the only way

         20  to deal with that would be through a much more

         21  comprehensive, and I am not proposing this, a much

         22  more extensive --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Great idea.

         24                 MR. LaPORTE: No, let me finish.

         25  Because it would make it impossible to do any kind

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            63

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  of building in this City. Just take a look at the

          3  process that the Department of Health spoke about

          4  earlier, and how long it takes to see successful

          5  results in any site, in the parks, or in any other

          6  sites that they are responsible for. It just is an

          7  extremely long process that doesn't guarantee

          8  success.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: In your

         10  relationship with your members, have you any

         11  anecdotal examples, as it relates to those

         12  manifesting themselves or the habitats of rats being

         13  a major problem?

         14                 MR. LaPORTE: No, I have had no

         15  anecdotal stories of incidents reported to me from

         16  my members, the builders, about problems in holding

         17  up construction because of rodents.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: That seems to

         19  coincide with testimony from Mr. Shor, who says in

         20  his years of experience with the Department of

         21  Buildings, he has not experienced that kind of rat

         22  problem to the extent where it interrupted a

         23  construction site.

         24                 MR. LaPORTE: My members are more

         25  upset by having to take this extra step for
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          2  something they see as a needless exercise, because

          3  they don't have that kind of experience.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay, thank you.

          5                 Mr. Fiala, followed by Council Member

          6  Perkins.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Thank you, Mr.

          8  Chairman.

          9                 Mr. LaPorte, I appreciate your

         10  comments. I assure you, when we authored this bill,

         11  my legal counsel Mario Durae and my Chief of Staff

         12  Vince Ignizio (phonetically spelled) had not set out

         13  to in any way create additional hurdles for

         14  development in this City. We recognize the important

         15  role that development plays. So, it wasn't about

         16  creating hurdles, it was about crafting solutions.

         17                 Let me ask you this: I don't believe

         18  in having conversations for the sake of having

         19  conversations. If someone is opposed and there is no

         20  room for negotiation, let's not talk. If someone is

         21  opposed to the means but agrees on the end, then

         22  there is room.

         23                 Legislation is the product of

         24  negotiation. Does your association have tangible

         25  alternatives not offered in my bill? We would be
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          2  more than willing to amend. Let me stress that to

          3  the Committee. I am not an absolutist, it's not all

          4  or nothing, but clearly we are dealing with a

          5  problem, and I have to say this: I have anecdotal

          6  evidence. I have constituents who have been violated

          7  by this City for rodent infestation on their

          8  property caused by adjacent construction. Your

          9  construction project, and I don't mean yours, let's

         10  say Fiala owns a lot and he wants to build a home,

         11  God bless him, it's America, and I wish I owned a

         12  lot to build a home, I would make a lot of money

         13  today.

         14                 My problems are that, they are mine.

         15  If there is toxic waste on the site, I am

         16  responsible. If there is a dilapidated building, I

         17  am responsible for raising the building and getting

         18  the permits and doing it in an appropriate manner.

         19  If there is debris, I am responsible for it. Why is

         20  it that when it comes to rats I can throw my arms up

         21  and say, I have no responsibility, I am going to

         22  build but my rats are now going to become Spigner's

         23  problems, and then Spigner, you get the violation,

         24  and you deal with it. You go to the Environmental

         25  Control Board, you pay the fines. You didn't create
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          2  the rat and neither did Fiala, Fiala started the

          3  problem.

          4                 Here is what we are dealing with. I

          5  don't know where this legislation is going to go. I

          6  know this: Every newspaper, every editorialist in

          7  this City for years have been debating this issue

          8  and one of them said earlier this summer when this

          9  bill came to the fore right outside on the steps, no

         10  breaks, no backsliding on this issue. Don't talk the

         11  talk if you are not going to walk the walk. I have

         12  presented to this Council, for the first time, a

         13  legislative remedy dealing with the problem. We can

         14  amend it. We can fix it. I never believe that I have

         15  the whole solution, but we can't abandon the notion

         16  that we must all, as the Commissioner in his

         17  testimony said, it is not just the City's

         18  responsibility, it's society's responsibility, it is

         19  all of our responsibilities.

         20                 This is what we are dealing with. New

         21  York City rats are a foot long, they can squeeze

         22  through a nickel, which you can't even see. They at

         23  one time carried the plague and they still do.

         24  Lepto. They carry salmonella, and a whole bunch of

         25  other bacterias which can ultimately lead to death.
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          2  Inaction is no longer a viable path for us to take.

          3  We are entering the 21st century, for God's sake,

          4  you know, I said if Aristotle couldn't deal with the

          5  problem that's one thing, but here we are, we can

          6  send a man to the moon, we can reach halfway around

          7  the world in a millimeter of a second, we are

          8  dealing with 50 million creatures, and all we get is

          9  roadblocks after roadblocks. So, I got to say this:

         10  They are a drain on our communities, they are a

         11  drain on our economy, may cost hundreds or thousands

         12  of dollars to abate them, depending on the size, I

         13  won't argue that, I have no way of quantifying it,

         14  but it costs millions, if not billions of dollars

         15  nationally to deal with the rat problems, because

         16  they gnaw away at our schools, they gnaw away at our

         17  property, they gnaw away at our electric lines and

         18  may be causing fires. They carry disease, disease

         19  that infects our children and our pets. There are

         20  countless, hundreds of millions of dollars which

         21  probably could be attributed to rats in this City

         22  which bear absolutely no role to society. They have

         23  no purpose whatsoever. They are neither Republican

         24  nor Democrat, they are independent and the only way

         25  to deal with it is if Republican and Democrats get
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          2  together and decide, we are going to enter the 21st

          3  Century, that's right, Stanley, and we are going to

          4  try to obliterate them. They serve no function

          5  whatsoever, they rob communities --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Council Member,

          7  do you have a question?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Yes. My

          9  question is: What specific elements of the bill are

         10  you opposed to, and can we fix it? Or is it we are

         11  just opposed to any type of regulation? And if so,

         12  then I respect that, I will respect it and we will

         13  part ways.

         14                 MR. LaPORTE: I just want to make one

         15  thing perfectly clear. I am not here on behalf of

         16  the rats. I am not advocating for the rat population

         17  in the City of New York, just to make that perfectly

         18  clear. I am advocating for a constituency that is

         19  once again being caused to have to expend additional

         20  dollars and time and energy for a problem that they

         21  did not cause, and understandably that we must share

         22  in additional dollars and time and energy for a

         23  problem that they did not cause, and understandably

         24  that we must share in baiting and helping.

         25                 I have no problems in working with
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          2  you on some other version of a bill that deals with

          3  rat abatement or removal of rats from building

          4  sites.

          5                 I will talk to you up front right now

          6  about some benefit that must flow back to

          7  contractors from the government if this is going to

          8  happen. If we are going to impose these costs, then

          9  it should not be an unfunded mandate, there should

         10  be some kind of tax benefit, some kind of subsidy,

         11  some kind of assistance from the Department of

         12  Health and the Bureau of Pest Control, if this is

         13  what needs to be done.

         14                 But this bill, by the way, just

         15  speaking to the substance of this bill, it is our

         16  belief that it doesn't do anything, it doesn't

         17  accomplish much in the way of fighting the rat

         18  population, and I think that to impose this it is

         19  useless exercise and it's a costly one to boot.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Council Member

         21  Perkins.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Thank you. I

         23  look forward to receiving the recommendations. We

         24  would love to amend the bill to try and make it more

         25  palatable.
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          2                 MR. LaPORTE: I don't know if you have

          3  a copy of my testimony in front of you, but I have

          4  suggested some changes in the Sanitation practices,

          5  so you can start with that.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I want to go

          7  just to that, because, you know, the Administration,

          8  as you heard, is supporting this bill, and at the

          9  same time you mentioned that you have some concerns

         10  about the Administrations practices with regard to

         11  sanitation and collection methodology, and I wonder

         12  if you would elaborate on some of your thoughts

         13  about how we can improve those practices and

         14  methodologies since we know that it is not

         15  construction that causes rats, it is construction,

         16  however, that aggravates the rat problem by

         17  disturbing the nests and rats running into the

         18  community. But actually, before construction there

         19  is sanitation and collection methodology.

         20                 So, what I wanted to get from you is

         21  some sense of what are these practices and these

         22  methodologies that you feel the root of our problem,

         23  as per your testimony?

         24                 MR. LaPORTE: Okay. It is my belief

         25  that you need more regular pick-ups of garbage. You

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            71

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  cannot leave garbage in plastic bags on sidewalks

          3  for days or hours or in containers that rats can

          4  have access to.

          5                 In residential neighborhoods in

          6  Manhattan, some buildings will put out garbage the

          7  night before and it will sit there throughout the

          8  night in anticipation of a pick up some time in the

          9  morning.

         10                 In the outer boroughs people are free

         11  to put their garbage on the sidewalk. At any point

         12  when it is convenient to them, if they are going

         13  away for a week and they need to put their garbage

         14  out before they leave and garbage pick up isn't for

         15  a week, it is sitting out there.

         16                 I think the containers that garbage

         17  are placed in, we may need to take a hard look at

         18  that. We may need something sturdier. We need better

         19  recycling measures. We need to take a look at what

         20  alternatives there are to dispose of food waste

         21  which is the primary source of our problem here in

         22  terms of the rodent population. The City recently

         23  passed legislation that allows the use of garbage

         24  disposal, food waste disposal, perhaps the City

         25  should promote the use of these food disposals in
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          2  properties and perhaps again give some kind of

          3  incentive to property owners to use these things and

          4  to install them.

          5                 So, that's some of the suggestions I

          6  have right off the top of my head.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Well, thank

          8  you very much. My Committee, the Select Committee on

          9  Pest Control, has been looking at our sanitation

         10  practices and collection methodologies, which is why

         11  I was so furious about it, especially as it relates

         12  to the black plastic bags being a source of rat

         13  feasts, and especially in terms of the

         14  containerization issues that apparently you have

         15  been looking at. And also in terms of the frequency

         16  with which our Sanitation Department picks up

         17  garbage. I know that all of these have some

         18  budgetary impacts, but nevertheless, more

         19  importantly, they have impacts as it relates to the

         20  health of the community.

         21                 If you have any documentation related

         22  to some of your thoughts, please send them to us so

         23  that we can include them. We have already submitted

         24  legislation related to the elimination of the black

         25  plastic bags and the requirement that all garbage be
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          2  containerized with metal cans and sealed tops or

          3  some other such paraphernalia, but if you have other

          4  ideas in this vain, we would very much appreciate

          5  having them.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Council Member

          7  Michels, followed by Council Member Nelson.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Thank you,

          9  Mr. Chairman.

         10                 I have listened very carefully to the

         11  testimony and I have read the legislation which

         12  wasn't very hard to do, it was only one page, like

         13  one paragraph, and I have been disturbed with this

         14  problem, and have been involved with it with the

         15  Borough President of Manhattan for some time, and I

         16  am just wondering, do you agree -- let's see if we

         17  can agree -- do you agree that when we do some work

         18  on a foundation, or when we do earthwork on the

         19  building that it serves the habitat of rats?

         20                 MR. LaPORTE: I agree that is when you

         21  are going to have -- yes, I agree that will disturb

         22  them.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And when you

         24  do that, the rats, instead of deserting a sinking

         25  ship, they will desert the area where the work is
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          2  being done, they will leave the area.

          3                 MR. LaPORTE: Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: You assume

          5  that, right?

          6                 MR. LaPORTE: Absolutely.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: So, don't you

          8  think there is some obligation on the part of the

          9  person who caused something to try to take care of

         10  the effect, cause and effect? You are causing the

         11  rats to go, to leave your area, so therefore they

         12  are going some place else, and that is the effect.

         13  Isn't there some obligation?

         14                 MR. LaPORTE: I think there is an

         15  obligation to try to abate the rat program on

         16  everybody's part, including the City's part. And I

         17  think the rats don't get there because the lot

         18  exists. The rats get there because something leads

         19  them to create these messes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Right. And

         21  they are on your property. You are on the property

         22  that is being developed.

         23                 MR. LaPORTE: I understand that.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And they are

         25  going to be leaving, going some place else as a
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          2  result of some work that is being done.

          3                 MR. LaPORTE: And if these rats should

          4  become a problem before development is done, it is

          5  the owner's responsibility to take care of that lot.

          6  And we do that without question.

          7                 In terms of the kind of program that

          8  you would be proposing for this type of situation,

          9  getting at the nests, it is extremely, extremely

         10  costly, time consuming, and not guaranteed to get

         11  anything done. The result is not going to have the

         12  effect that you want.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And as the

         14  Chairman said, undisturbed probably doesn't cause

         15  rats, disturbed probably does --

         16                 MR. LaPORTE: Well, no.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And,

         18  therefore, there is an obligation on somebody's part

         19  who causes the chain to start. This is the proximate

         20  cause of the proliferation.

         21                 MR. LaPORTE: When we talk about

         22  proximate cause, we want to get into the legal

         23  definition --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And good

         25  proximate cause, as we learned in law school, comes
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          2  to duty.

          3                 MR. LaPORTE: That's right. But first

          4  you have to find out who the proximate cause is,

          5  Stanley. It is not assumed to be the person in the

          6  middle.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: You just

          8  admitted that --

          9                 MR. La PORTE: There is negligence in

         10  the air, Stanley, do you remember that?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: -- The

         12  earthwork and the laying of the foundation does

         13  disturb the ground.

         14                 MR. LaPORTE: There is a lot of things

         15  that happen that create the rat population to

         16  propagate. So are we going to go after all of those

         17  proximate causes?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: We are not

         19  talking about --

         20                 MR. LaPORTE: Are we going to impose

         21  the same duty on all organizations in all areas of

         22  every industry in this City? Are we going to do

         23  that? Is the City going to step up to the plate and

         24  take an aggressive stance when it comes to this

         25  problem? Or are we once again going to lay it at the
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          2  door of the real estate industry, which seems to be

          3  the answer to every problem in this City.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: It --

          5                 MR. LaPORTE: Stanley, wait, I am not

          6  finished.

          7                 We have seen it with if there is a

          8  fire in the building, it all of a sudden becomes the

          9  building owner's responsibility. There is a flood,

         10  it becomes the building owner's responsibility. A

         11  subway derailed, it is going to wind up being a

         12  building owner's responsibility somehow.

         13                 What I am saying, I am here to say is

         14  that we have to stop. We have to stop and look at

         15  what we are doing to the industry that keeps this

         16  City alive.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I agree that

         18  we have to really be a nurturing industry. But we

         19  don't answer questions, we ask questions.

         20                 The questions are --

         21                 MR. LaPORTE: But I am responding with

         22  what I think is an appropriate answer.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: The person

         24  responsible for the activity, which results in the

         25  rats moving, has a duty to eliminate them.
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          2                 MR. LaPORTE: That would be the

          3  bulldozer. If you want to get technical.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Yes. And the

          5  bulldozer is operated by somebody. It is hired by

          6  somebody, who is paid by somebody.

          7                 MR. LaPORTE: Stanley, you can have

          8  this debate, and I will do it with you any time, any

          9  place, but it goes on ad infinitim. You and I are

         10  not going to agree on this. The bottom line is that

         11  we need to work together to resolve this problem. It

         12  cannot be one industry or one person's total

         13  responsibility.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Agreed. So,

         15  we will contribute the inspectors to make sure they

         16  do the right job. So, that is the responsibility --

         17                 MR. LaPORTE: I didn't mean that.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Oh, that's

         19  not what you meant? I thought that is what you

         20  meant.

         21                 The fact of the matter is, as my good

         22  friend who introduced this legislation, Council

         23  Member Fiala said, there is no -- and to paraphrase

         24  LaGuardia who said there is no democratic or

         25  republican way to remove garbage, there certainly is
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          2  no republican or democratic way to rid the City of

          3  rats who cause such problems. And therefore, I will

          4  support this bill with him and we will fight to make

          5  sure this bill gets passed.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Council Member

          8  Nelson.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Hi, Mr.

         10  LaPorte.

         11                 MR. LaPORTE: Hi.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Is anybody

         13  from the Health Department still here? They left,

         14  didn't they? Because I am in disagreement with you

         15  very much about -- oh, okay. We have a major problem

         16  and I think the Health Department could be doing a

         17  lot more. In that I see, in my area I can speak for

         18  specifically, there are a lot of fruit stands, as

         19  well as restaurants, who are not taking proper care

         20  or disposing of their garbage.

         21                 I just had a walk-through recently,

         22  and there were open dumpsters, and I held a huge

         23  rotten cantaloupe, because rats won't go for the

         24  bait if they have this delicious rotten fruit, to

         25  them it is a delicacy. So, the Health Department I
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          2  wish would be doing a lot more, I think we would see

          3  a lot less rats around there. I agree with you with

          4  that. And perhaps maybe if we had more subliminal

          5  commercials, we could round up all of these rats and

          6  then whack them.

          7                 All right, thank you, Mr. Chair.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Council Member

          9  Marshall.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Very

         11  briefly. Every time there is construction, and I

         12  have got quite a bit of it going on around me, we

         13  get invaded with mice. Now we have a major project

         14  going on, and I just went down to talk to the

         15  project director, he said, Councilwoman, can't you

         16  do something to get rid of these rats? He said, the

         17  rats look like puppies. And mind you, this is a City

         18  project, and they have done the baiting but we still

         19  have rats. And those rats come right across the

         20  street to the residential areas.

         21                 MR. LaPORTE: If I can just interject.

         22  You just got to the root of what I have been saying

         23  all along. You said that it's a City project, they

         24  still do abatement and you still have rats.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: But what he
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          2  tells me is that the abatement is not as thorough as

          3  it should be. And they are only doing it, they are

          4  not required to do it. It is being done because they

          5  are just trying to keep control of it, but he says

          6  we need stronger help here, this is not enough. And

          7  they are not willing to spend any more money doing

          8  it. That's the problem.

          9                 MR. LaPORTE: Well, as I said before,

         10  I think it is a global problem. And I don't believe

         11  that it is appropriate to have one industry bear the

         12  brunt of that problem, and I would be willing to

         13  work with any member of the Council who wants to

         14  develop legislation to deal with this.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Right. But

         16  the only way we see them, when the undersoil is

         17  disturbed, is when they come out, we are disturbing

         18  their habitat. That is why we have them.

         19                 MS. LaPORTE: That is why you have

         20  them, yes. I have agreed, I have stipulated that we

         21  have them because of that, but they get there for a

         22  reason, and I think we have to look at the whole

         23  problem. They are there because there is food and

         24  there is sanitation.

         25                 If you put rats in an empty lot and
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          2  deny them food, they would be dead in a very short

          3  period of time.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Thank you,

          5  Mr. Chair.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: That concludes

          7  our list. Thank you, Mr. LaPorte. This concludes our

          8  list of witnesses, and this is the first hearing of

          9  this bill. We are not taking a vote, therefore, this

         10  meeting is adjourned.

         11                 (Hearing concluded at 2:35 p.m.)
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